
 

 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN 

SOUTHERN DIVISION 
 
 

LL NJ, INC, a Michigan corporation,    Case No. 2:06-cv-14312 
and LIFESTYLE LIFT HOLDING     Hon:  David M. Lawson 
COMPANY, INC., a Michigan corporation 
           
     Plaintiffs,  
 
 
v 
        
  
NBC - Subsidiary (WCAU-TV), L.P., a 
Delaware Limited Partnership, NBC 
STATIONS MANAGEMENT II, Inc, a  
Delaware corporation, NBC STATIONS 
MANAGEMENT, INC, a Delaware  
corporation, NBC UNIVERSAL, INC., 
a Delaware corporation, LU ANN CAHN,  
JOHN DOE 1 and JOHN DOE 2, LOUIS 
P. BUCKY, M.D., Individuals. 
 
     Defendants 
_____________________________________/ 
 
THE WEINTRAUB GROUP, PLC BUTZEL LONG 
Arnold S. Weintraub (P22127)  James E. Stewart (P22354)  
Robert A. Dunn (P36248) Laurie J. Michelson (P47214)  
Attorneys for Plaintiff Deborah J. Swedlow (P67844) 
3200 Northwestern Highway, Ste. 240 Attorneys for Defendants  
Farmington Hills, MI 48334  350 South Main Street, Suite 300  
Telephone:  (248) 865-9430 Ann Arbor, Michigan 48104 
 Telephone: (734) 995-3110  
  
 

 
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

1. Plaintiff Lifestyle Lift Holding, Inc. is a Michigan Corporation located at 100 Kirts 

Blvd., Suite A, Troy, MI 48084. Plaintiff is the owner and holder of the registered 

trademark “Lifestyle Lift”. Plaintiff LL NJ, Inc. is a Michigan corporation managing the 

practices of physicians at a medical facility at 150 Clove Road, Little Falls, NJ 07424.  

FIRST AMENDED 
COMPLAINT AND JURY 

DEMAND 
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2. Defendant NBC - Subsidiary (WCAU-TV), L.P. (hereafter “WCAU”) is a Delaware 

limited partnership operating a NBC television affiliate in Philadelphia operating and 

known as Channel 10 in Philadelphia.  NBC Stations Management II, Inc., a Delaware 

corporation, is the general partner of WCAU. Defendant NBC Universal, Inc. Inc., is a 

Delaware corporation who, upon information and belief, owns or controls the 

programming on WCAU. Lu Ann Cahn is a reporter employed by WCAU. John Does 1 

and 2 are agents and/or employees of Defendants NBC Subsidiary (WCAU-TV), L.P., 

NBC Stations management, Inc., NBC Stations Management II, Inc. and NBC 

Universal, Inc. (hereinafter referred to collectively as “NBC10”). Louis P. Bucky, M.D. is 

a physician with an office located at 230 West Washington Square, Suite 101, 

Philadelphia, PA 19106. 

3. This Court has jurisdiction over this action by virtue of: 

(a) Jurisdiction founded on the existence of a federal question arising under the 

Lanham Trademark Act. The Court has jurisdiction under Sections 43(a) of the 

Trademark Act of 1946, 15 U.S.C. 1125(a), and the Judicial Code, 28 U.S.C. 1331 on 

account of the existence of a question arising under the Constitution laws or treaties of 

the United States, and 1338(a) in that this case arises under the trademark laws of the 

United States, 15 U.S.C. 1051 et seq., as hereinafter more fully appears.  

(b) Jurisdiction over related claims arising under the laws of the States of New 

Jersey and Michigan. The Court has jurisdiction of claims herein arising under the laws 

of the State of New Jersey and Michigan under the provisions of 28 U.S.C. 1367(a) in 

that said claims are joined with a substantial and related claim under the trademark laws 

cited above. 

(c) Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. 1391. 
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FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

4. Plaintiff Lifestyle Lift Holding, Inc. (“LLH”) is the present holder of United States 

Trademark Registration No. 3,102,900 for the mark “Lifestyle Lift” used to identify 

cosmetic surgical procedures Plaintiff licenses this trademark to plastic surgery centers 

across the United States (the “Licensed Facilities”).  

5. Doctors working in Plaintiff’s Licensed Facilities specialize in performing a facelift 

procedure, under the “Lifestyle Lift” trademark (the “Trademark”). The procedure can be 

performed in a relatively short time and is minimally invasive, allowing most patients to 

return to work quickly. 

6. Plaintiff LL NJ, Inc. (“LL NJ”) operates a Licensed Facility in Little Falls, New 

Jersey where its physicians perform the procedure described herein. Plaintiff LL NJ is 

the possessor of a license to use the trademark pursuant to a license agreement 

between itself and Plaintiff Lifestyle Lift Holding, Inc. 

7. Doctors working for Plaintiffs LL NJ, Inc. and Lifestyle Lift Holding, Inc. in 

performing the trademarked “Lifestyle Lift” procedure have earned favorable reputations 

in their geographic and professional areas. 

8. LLH has devoted substantial resources in establishing its business and in 

promoting cosmetic surgical procedures under the “Lifestyle Lift” trademark in various 

media including of radio and television advertising. Such advertising makes use of the 

trademark in order to build brand identity. 

9. As a result of its efforts, LLH’s Licensed Facilities have become well and 

favorably known in the communities in which they operate, gaining a reputation for 

quality facelift services at reasonable cost in a caring and pleasant environment. 

10. Sometime in the summer of 2006, Defendants, acting in concert, conspired to 

contact and/or recruit individuals who would contact LL NJ with the apparent intent of 

becoming patients. Defendants did so with the primary intent of surreptitiously recording 

conversations and other activities inside Plaintiffs’ places of business.  
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11. On one occasion in 2006, NBC10, caused Defendants John Doe 1 and John Doe 

2 to enter into Plaintiff LL NJ’s place of business located at 150 Clove Road, Little Falls, 

NJ 07424. John Doe 2 had a hidden camera concealed upon his/her person. 

12. Plaintiff LL NJ was operating its business in its ordinary fashion with patients 

occupying the waiting area.  

13. Upon information and belief, in accordance with Plaintiff LL NJ’s standard 

operating procedure, John Doe 1 and John Doe 2 were asked to sign and did sign a 

statement stating and agreeing that they did not possess nor were they operating any 

type of recording device. 

14.  Defendant John Doe 2, unknown to Plaintiff LL NJ and its personnel and 

employees, was recording all conversations taking place in their presence, whether 

between himself and others or between third parties. A large portion of the information 

recorded by John Doe 2 included the private medical information of third parties. 

15. At no time did Plaintiff LL NJ or any of its employees or agents consent to the 

recording of any conversation or any other type of recording within its place of business. 

16. On or about October 10, 2006, WCAU broadcast at least three commercial 

segments (trailers) identifying Plaintiffs by the trademark “Lifestyle Lift” as the target of 

and “investigation” by Defendant WCAU, imputing that the investigation revealed a 

result unfavorable to Plaintiffs. 

17. On October 10, 2006, NBC10 Defendants broadcast a 10 minute segment under 

the rubric “10 INVESTIGATORS”. The broadcast conveyed a false impression of 

Plaintiffs and the services offered under the mark “Lifestyle Lift”. The “Lifestyle Lift” 

trademark is spoken multiple times during the segment and displayed visually multiple 

times, several of which included the display of the “Lifestyle Lift” logo. The segment 

contained statements that were false and pertained directly to the quality of Plaintiffs 

services, and contained two unauthorized rebroadcasts of portions of discontinued 
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advertisements which falsely conveyed the impression that Plaintiffs are falsely 

advertising their services.  

18. At least three of the aforementioned false statements were made by Defendant 

Bucky. During the aforementioned broadcast, Defendant Bucky made the statement 

that the Lifestyle Lift is a procedure “that was basically discarded in the 1970s”.  

Defendant Bucky made the statement that the Lifestyle Lift, “might work fine for about 5 

percent of patients”. Defendant Bucky stated that, “if this operation was real and truly 

worked than far more qualified physicians would all be doing that.” Another statement is 

made by a purported former patient to the effect that the Lifestyle Lift procedure 

includes “rolling the skin up behind the ear”.  These statements are literally false and/or 

convey a false and misleading impression of the facts in the minds of viewers. 

19. Defendant Cahn, upon information and belief, selected and arranged the 

interviews and drafted the narrative for the program broadcast and intended to 

broadcast the false statements in a manner to defame Plaintiffs and Plaintiffs’ 

trademarks and services, with knowledge that the statements were false.   It was 

Defendants’ understanding and intention that the false statements would be publicly 

broadcast and broadcast over the internet and would affect Plaintiffs’ reputation in 

Michigan and other states. 

20. NBC10 has posted a copy of this program on its website identifying the program 

with the title “Women Upset With Facelift Results” and the URL 

http://www.nbc10.com/news/10046835/detail.html. It was also posted on the website at 

the URL http://www.nbc10.com/health/index.html in a box marked “Most Popular”, 

Videos, “NBC10 Investigators: Facelift Story (Part 1)”.  
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COUNT I: VIOLATION OF NEW JERSEY WIRETAPPING AND ELECTRONIC 

SURVEILLANCE CONTROL ACT 

21. Plaintiffs incorporate all of the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint as if set 

forth in full herein. 

22. Defendants, through their hidden recording of Plaintiff LL NJ’s premises have 

recorded images, voices and other information concerning Plaintiff’s medical patients 

and/or its employees, the specific identity of which is, at this time, known only to 

Defendants. 

23. Defendants purposely intercepted, and/or endeavored to intercept, and/or 

procured other persons to intercept or endeavor to intercept oral communication within 

the confines of Plaintiff LL NJ’s premises. 

24. Defendants have or intend to purposely disclose or endeavor to disclose to 

others the contents of private oral communications, knowing or having reason to know 

that this information was obtained through the interception of oral communications 

within the confines of Plaintiff LL NJ’s premises. 

25. Defendants have or intend to use the contents of private oral communications, 

knowing or having reason to know that this information was obtained through the 

interception of oral communications within the confines of Plaintiff LL NJ’s premises. 

26. Plaintiff’s patients and employees had a reasonable expectation of privacy as to 

their oral communications within the confines of Plaintiff LL NJ’s premises. 

27. Such conduct is in violation of N.J. Stat. 2A:156A-3 and N.J. Stat. 156A-24. 

28. Plaintiffs have a duty pursuant to 42 USC 1320d, et. seq., 45 CFR 164.500, 45 

CFR 164.520, 45 CFR 164.528, to take steps to protect the identity and other 

confidential information concerning medical patients on their premises.  Plaintiff LL NJ is 

unable to comply with the patient notification provisions of the regulations, specifically 

45 CFR 164.528, because they are unaware of the date and time of Defendants 
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intrusions, as well as of the contents of the tapes recorded by Defendants, thus 

exposing Plaintiffs to possible criminal liability and administrative sanction.  

29. Plaintiffs have been and will continue to suffer damages to their business by the 

recording and future disclosure of this information. Plaintiffs’ patrons and employees 

have suffered injury due the recording and future disclosure of this information. 

 

COUNT II: TRESPASS TO LAND 

30. Plaintiffs incorporate all of the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint as if set 

forth in full herein. 

31. Plaintiff LL NJ is now, and at all relevant times has been, the leaseholder in 

possession of the premises located at 150 Clove Road, Lobby Level, Little Falls, NJ 

07424. 

32. Sometime in 2006, Defendant wrongfully and under false pretenses entered 

upon the premises belonging to plaintiff. 

33. Defendants, through their agents, John Doe 1 and John Doe 2, carried out covert 

surveillance of Plaintiff’ LL NJ’s premises by means of hidden devices after signing a 

document which contained a specific prohibition against filming on the premises. 

34. The above specified acts constitute trespass to land under New Jersey law. 

35. Because of the trespass of Defendants, Plaintiffs have been and will continue to 

suffer damages to their business. 

 

COUNT III. VIOLATION OF 15 USC 1125(A). 

36. Plaintiffs incorporate all of the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint as if set 

forth in full herein. 

37. Upon information and belief Defendants, acting in concert, and through the acts 

listed above, have made or are making use of words, terms, names, symbols, and/or 

devices, and/or combinations thereof, false and misleading descriptions of fact, as well 
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as  false and misleading representations of fact in commercial advertising or promotion, 

misrepresenting the nature, characteristics, qualities of Plaintiffs’ services, and/or 

commercial activities in violation of 15 USC 1125(a)(1) (B). 

38. Because of the aforementioned violation of 15 USC 1125(a) by Defendants, 

Plaintiffs have been and will continue to suffer damages to their business. 

 

COUNT IV – DEFAMATION 

39. Plaintiffs incorporate all of the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint as if set 

forth in full herein. 

40. Defendant Bucky’s statements listed above are false and are a direct attack on 

Plaintiff’s performance and promotion of the Lifestyle Lift and the business reputation of 

Plaintiffs. Defendant Bucky’s statements were willfully and maliciously broadcast and 

published by the NBC10 defendants with actual knowledge of their falsity or reckless 

disregard for their truth. 

41. Defendants published statements that are and/or have been false and 

slanderous, and made with the intent to injure Plaintiffs in their good name and 

business, and to cause a belief that Plaintiffs could not deliver professional services in 

the manner in which they have held those services out to the public. 

42. Defendants published these defamatory statements with actual knowledge that 

they were false, or with reckless disregard as to its truth or falsity, or with negligence. 

43. Defendants’ defamatory statements do not involve a matter of public concern. 

44. Plaintiffs’ surgeons, are plastic surgeons by profession and, by good conduct, 

industry, and ability, have attained individually and collectively an excellent reputation in 

such profession. 

45. At all times, plaintiff LL NH, Inc. was, and for many years had been, and now is, a 

business of good standing in the State of New Jersey and the State of Michigan with an 

excellent reputation in the provision of medical services. 
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46. At all times, plaintiff Lifestyle Lift Holding, Inc. was, and for many years had been, 

and now is, a business of good standing in the State of Michigan with an excellent 

reputation in the provision of medical services 

47. Because of the publication of the false statements, Plaintiffs’ surgeons have been 

injured in good name and credit. Their professional reputations, business reputations 

and standing as a physicians and plastic surgeons has been stigmatized, which will 

work greatly to their injury in the future. 

48. Because of the publication of the false statements, plaintiffs LL NJ, Inc. and 

Lifestyle Lift Holding, Inc. have been injured in good name and credit. Plaintiffs LL NJ, 

Inc. and Lifestyle Lift Holding, Inc’s business reputation and standing in the community 

has been stigmatized, resulting in the loss of patients, all of which will work greatly to 

plaintiffs injury in generating business in the future. 

 

THEREFORE, Plaintiffs request: 

A. That Defendants be preliminarily and permanently enjoined and 

restrained from displaying or in any way disseminating any video or audio 

tape which contains confidential personal patient information belonging to 

Plaintiffs’ patients, and preliminarily and permanently enjoined and 

restrained from displaying or in any way disseminating the segment 

broadcast on October 10,2006 relating to Plaintiffs. 

B. That Judgment be entered against Defendants in whatever sum to which 

Plaintiffs are found to be entitled, including the award of punitive damages 

pursuant to N.J. Stat. 2A:156A-24, and both general and special damages 

for defamation; 

C. That Judgment be entered against Defendants for their violation of 

15USC 1125(a) to the extent of Plaintiffs’ damage and that such amount 

be enhanced as a consequence of Defendants willfulness; 
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       D. That Plaintiffs be awarded their costs and attorney fees; and, 

  E. Grant Plaintiffs such other relief that the Court deems proper. 
 

 

THE WEINTRAUB GROUP, PLC 

 

By:  s/ Robert A. Dunn____________ 
 Arnold S. Weintraub (P22127)  
 Robert A. Dunn (36248)  
 Attorney for Plaintiffs 

3200 Northwestern Highway, Ste. 240 
Farmington Hills, MI 48334 
 
 
 

JURY DEMAND 
 

 NOW come Plaintiffs, Lifestyle Lift Holding, Inc., and LL NJ, Inc. and hereby 
demand trial by jury in the above captioned matter.  

 
THE WEINTRAUB GROUP, PLC 

 
By:  s/Robert A. Dunn_____________ 

 Arnold S. Weintraub (P22127)   
 Attorney for Plaintiffs 

3200 Northwestern Highway, Ste. 240 
Farmington Hills, MI 48334 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 

I hereby certify that on October 13, 2006, I electronically filed the foregoing paper 
with the Clerk of the Court using the ECF system which will send notification of 
such filing to counsel of record. 

 

By:  s/ Robert A. Dunn______        
 Robert A. Dunn (P36248) 
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